
AGENDA
BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

100 State Street, Beloit WI 53511
City Hall Forum – 7:00 p.m.
Monday, January 7, 2013

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY/ANNOUNCEMENTS – none

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS

a. Public Hearing and Resolution Authorizing a Conditional Use Permit to allow
expansion of a Warehouse and Freight movement use in a C-3, Community Commercial
District, for the property located at 1877 Madison Road (Christensen)
Plan Commission recommendation for approval 7-0

5. CITIZENS' PARTICIPATION

6. CONSENT AGENDA

All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no
separate discussion of these items unless a Council member so requests, in which event the item will be removed from the
General Order of Business and considered at this point on the agenda.

a. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of December 17, 2012 (Houseman)

b. Resolution approving an Office of Justice Assistance Law Enforcement Officer
Grant Award – Beat Patrol (Tyler/Casper)

7. ORDINANCES

a. Proposed Ordinance to amend Sections 25.04(4)(d) and 18.02(4)(b) and to create
Sections 18.02(23) and 15.15 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit
pertaining to Animal Control Enforcement and Dog Park Regulations (Krueger)
First reading, suspend the rules for a second reading

b. Proposed Ordinance to repeal section 1.81 of the Code of General Ordinances of the
City of Beloit as it relates to disbanding the Disabled Parking Enforcement Assistance
Council (Jacobs) First reading, suspend the rules for a second reading

8. APPOINTMENTS – none

9. COUNCILOR ACTIVITIES AND UPCOMING EVENTS

10. CITY MANAGER’S PRESENTATION – none

11. REPORTS FROM BOARD AND CITY OFFICERS



a. Resolution approving the Naming of the Auditorium at Grinnell Hall in Honor of John
Kalkirtz (Ramsey)

b. Resolution authorizing Schedule of Fees and Charges for the City of Beloit Dog Park
in the City of Beloit, Wisconsin (Ramsey)

c. Resolution amending the 2013 Capital Equipment Replacement Budget and
Appropriating Funds for the Replacement of Pickup Truck 431 (Flesch)

d. Resolution approving an Amendment of the Agreement between the City of Beloit and
VantageCare Retirement Health Savings (RHS) Plan (York)

e. Resolution authorizing and approving a Cost of Living Adjustment for Non-
Represented City employees (Arft/York)

12. ADJOURNMENT

** Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of
disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information to request this service, please contact the
City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511.

Dated: January 3, 2013
Rebecca S. Houseman
City of Beloit City Clerk
http://www.ci.beloit.wi.us

You can watch this meeting live on Charter PEG channel 98 or digital channel
992. Meetings are rebroadcast during the week of the Council meeting on
Tuesday at 1:00 p.m., Thursday at 8:30 a.m. and Friday at 1:00 p.m.

http://www.ci.beloit.wi.us/


CU-2012-08, Woodman's Warehouse Expansion, 1877 Madison Road, Council Report

RESOLUTION
AUTHORIZING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO

ALLOW THE EXPANSION OF A WAREHOUSE & FREIGHT MOVEMENT USE
IN A C-3, COMMUNITY COMMERCIAL DISTRICT,

FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1877 MADISON ROAD

WHEREAS, the application of Building Systems General Corp., on behalf of
Woodman’s Food Markets Inc. for a Conditional Use Permit to allow the expansion of a
Warehouse & Freight Movement Use in a C-3, Community Commercial District, for the
property located at 1877 Madison Road, having been considered by the City Council of the City
of Beloit, Wisconsin at a public hearing held for that purpose and due notice of said hearing
having been given by publication as appears by the Proof of Publication on file in the office of
the City Clerk.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the City Council of the City of
Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin does hereby grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow the
expansion of a Warehouse & Freight Movement Use in a C-3, Community Commercial District,
for the property located at 1877 Madison Road in the City of Beloit, for the following described
premises:

Lot 1 of a Certified Survey Map as recorded in Volume 29, Pages 83-86 in the
Certified Survey Maps of Rock County, located in the City of Beloit, Rock
County, Wisconsin. Said parcel contains 17.05 acres, more or less.

As a condition of granting the Conditional Use Permit, the City Council does hereby
stipulate the following conditions and restrictions upon the Conditional Use, which are hereby
deemed necessary for the public interest:

1. This Conditional Use Permit authorizes the demolition & replacement of the existing
(attached) 71,678 square-foot warehouse with an expanded 91,546 square-foot warehouse
that will connect the grocery store to the warehouse buildings along Madison Road.

2. The applicant, at their expense, shall relocate the existing sanitary sewer main under the
east-west driveway to Burton Street prior to beginning construction of the warehouse
addition. All work shall comply with City of Beloit standards.

3. The applicant shall install a Landscape Strip consisting of at least ten (10) landscape units
per linear foot of right-of-way frontage between the Burton Street driveway and the
northern limits of this addition. All landscaping shall be installed along the perimeter of
the site on the outside of the chainlink fence. Trees and shrubs may be installed in the
public right-of-way if there is no room on the subject property.

4. The property owner is responsible for storing trucks & trailers in appropriate locations.
Short and long-term storage of trucks & trailers along the private Madison Road frontage
road and adjacent public streets is expressly prohibited.

5. Prior to issuance of a Building Permit for this project, the applicant shall obtain an



CU-2012-08, Woodman's Warehouse Expansion, 1877 Madison Road, Council Report

Architectural Review Certificate and a Certificate of Zoning Compliance.
6. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by

the Plan Commission and City Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The
Director of Planning & Building Services may approve minor changes administratively.

Adopted this 7th day of January, 2013.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

Charles M. Haynes, Council President

ATTEST:

Rebecca S. Houseman, City Clerk



CU-2012-08, Woodman's Warehouse Expansion, 1877 Madison Road, Council Report

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Conditional Use Permit Application for the property located at 1877 Madison Road

Date: January 7, 2013

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
Building Systems General Corp., on behalf of Woodman’s Food Markets Inc., has filed an application for a Conditional
Use Permit to allow the expansion of a Warehouse & Freight Movement Use in a C-3, Community Commercial District, for
the property located at 1877 Madison Road.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
 This large parcel includes the Woodman’s grocery store & parking lot, a warehouse attached to the store, a

massive detached warehouse building along Madison Road, and a small gas station with quick lube & car wash
services. Because the Woodman’s warehouses at this site serve their grocery stores throughout the region, they
are classified as an Industrial use (Warehouse & Freight Movement), which requires a Conditional Use Permit in
the C-3 district.

 The applicant has proposed the demolition & replacement of the existing (attached) 71,678 square-foot
warehouse with an expanded 91,546 square-foot warehouse that will connect the grocery store to the warehouse
building. The proposed addition includes six loading docks and will eliminate the existing east-west driveway
through this site. The existing sanitary sewer main under the driveway will be relocated to Burton Street at the
applicant’s expense.

 If this proposed addition is approved and constructed, the total floor area of the combined building will be 362,642
square feet or 8.33 acres, which amounts to 49% of the area of the entire parcel.

 Planning staff and the Plan Commission have recommended conditions of approval that address the utility
relocation, landscaping along Burton Street, and the short- and long-term storage of trucks and trailers on site.

 The Plan Commission reviewed this item on December 19, 2012 and voted unanimously (7-0) to recommend
approval of the Conditional Use Permit, subject to the six conditions recommended by Planning staff.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the
City’s mission.):

 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it
will impact both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
 City Council consideration and action on the proposed Resolution

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Resolution and Staff Report to the Plan Commission



CU-2012-08, Woodman's Warehouse Expansion, 1877 Madison Road, Council Report

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: December 19, 2012 Agenda Item: 3 File Number: CU-2012-08

Applicant: Building Systems General
Corp.

Owner: Woodman’s Food Markets Inc. Location: 1877 Madison Road

Existing Zoning: C-3, Community
Commercial District

Existing Land Use: Grocery Store
and Warehouse & Freight Movement

Parcel Size: 17.05 Acres

Request Overview/Background Information:
Building Systems General Corp., on behalf of Woodman’s Food Markets Inc., has filed an application for a Conditional
Use Permit to allow the expansion of a Warehouse & Freight Movement Use in a C-3, Community Commercial District, for
the property located at 1877 Madison Road.

Key Issues:
 This large parcel includes the Woodman’s grocery store & parking lot, a warehouse attached to the store, a

massive detached warehouse building along Madison Road, and a small gas station with quick lube & car wash
services.

 Because the Woodman’s warehouses at this site serve their grocery stores throughout the region, they are
classified as an Industrial use (Warehouse & Freight Movement), which requires a Conditional Use Permit in the
C-3 district.

 Woodman’s constructed a 32,639 square-foot addition to the detached warehouse building in 2011. At the time of
that addition, the floor area of the grocery store still exceeded the floor area of the detached warehouse building.

 The applicant has proposed the demolition & replacement of the existing (attached) 71,678 square-foot
warehouse with an expanded 91,546 square-foot warehouse that will connect the grocery store to the warehouse
buildings.

 The proposed addition includes six loading docks and will eliminate the existing east-west driveway through this
site. The existing sanitary sewer main under the driveway will be relocated to Burton Street at the applicant’s
expense.

 If this proposed addition is approved and constructed, the total floor area of the combined building will be 362,642
square feet or 8.33 acres, which amounts to 49% of the area of the entire parcel.

 The attached Location and Zoning Map shows the various zoning districts and land uses surrounding the
subject property. Uses adjacent to the proposed addition include a self-service storage facility, a church, a park,
and single-family dwellings. There is a significant grade change between the subject property and the adjacent
uses to the north. The subject property has a much lower elevation, as shown in the attached photographs.

 The applicant has already submitted detailed site & architectural plans for Planning staff review and approval.
 A preliminary Site Plan and other supporting documents are attached to this report.
 The City’s Review Agents have reviewed this application and have not submitted any comments or concerns.
 The attached Public Notice was sent to fifteen nearby property owners. As of this writing, staff has not received

any comments or concerns.
 Findings of Fact

Based on Section 2-504 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall make a recommendation based
on the following considerations:

a. Whether the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the conditional use will be detrimental to or
endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare;

 Subject to certain conditions of approval, the proposed conditional use will not be detrimental
to or endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare.

b. Whether the conditional use will be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the
immediate vicinity for purposes already permitted;

 Due to the immediately adjacent commercial & institutional uses, the grade change of the
site, the orientation of the loading docks, and the travel path to/from Madison Road, the
proposed warehouse expansion will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of surrounding
properties.

c. Whether the conditional use will substantially diminish or impair property values within the
neighborhood of the subject property;

 On the contrary, the proposed improvement of this commercial property is likely to enhance



CU-2012-08, Woodman's Warehouse Expansion, 1877 Madison Road, Council Report

property values within the area.
d. Whether the establishment of the conditional use will impede the normal and orderly development

and improvement of the surrounding property;
 The establishment of the conditional use will not impede the development and improvement

of surrounding property.
e. Whether the exterior architectural design or site layout of the proposed conditional use is so dissimilar

or otherwise incompatible with existing or proposed development in the immediate neighborhood that
it will cause a depreciation in property values;

 The proposed architectural design and site layout are compatible with the existing
development with respect to design, materials, and function.

f. Whether adequate utilities, access roads, drainage or other necessary facilities will be available to
serve the proposed use at the time of its occupancy or use;

 The applicant is responsible for relocating the existing sanitary sewer main that is in conflict
with the proposed addition.

 Adequate facilities and infrastructure are available to serve the conditional use.
g. Whether adequate measures will be taken to minimize traffic congestion; and

 The proposed addition is not expected to result in a significant increase in truck traffic.
 Staff is recommending a condition of approval that prohibits the short or long-term storage of

trucks & trailers along the private frontage road along Madison Road and adjacent public
streets.

h. Whether the conditional use will comply with all applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance.
 The conditional use will comply with all other applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The City’s Comprehensive Plan recommends Community Commercial uses for the subject property, and the underlying
C-3 zoning district classification is consistent with this recommendation. Consideration of this request supports City of
Beloit Strategic Goal #4.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow the expansion of a
Warehouse & Freight Movement Use in a C-3, Community Commercial District, for the property located at 1877 Madison
Road, based on the above Findings of Fact and subject to the following conditions:

1. This Conditional Use Permit authorizes the demolition & replacement of the existing (attached) 71,678 square-
foot warehouse with an expanded 91,546 square-foot warehouse that will connect the grocery store to the
warehouse buildings along Madison Road.

2. The applicant, at their expense, shall relocate the existing sanitary sewer main under the east-west driveway to
Burton Street prior to beginning construction of the warehouse addition. All work shall comply with City of Beloit
standards.

3. The applicant shall install a Landscape Strip consisting of at least ten (10) landscape units per linear foot of right-
of-way frontage between the Burton Street driveway and the northern limits of this addition. All landscaping shall
be installed along the perimeter of the site on the outside of the chainlink fence. Trees and shrubs may be
installed in the public right-of-way if there is no room on the subject property.

4. The property owner is responsible for storing trucks & trailers in appropriate locations. Short and long-term
storage of trucks & trailers along the private Madison Road frontage road and adjacent public streets is expressly
prohibited.

5. Prior to issuance of a Building Permit for this project, the applicant shall obtain an Architectural Review Certificate
and a Certificate of Zoning Compliance.

6. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan Commission
and City Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The Director of Planning & Building Services may
approve minor changes administratively.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, Photos, Site Plans (2), Application, Public Notice, and Mailing List.



CU-2012-08, Woodman's Warehouse Expansion, 1877 Madison Road, Council Report



CU-2012-08, Woodman's Warehouse Expansion, 1877 Madison Road, Council Report

To Be
Replaced/Expanded

View from Frederick Street



CU-2012-08, Woodman's Warehouse Expansion, 1877 Madison Road, Council Report



CU-2012-08, Woodman's Warehouse Expansion, 1877 Madison Road, Council Report



CU-2012-08, Woodman's Warehouse Expansion, 1877 Madison Road, Council Report



CU-2012-08, Woodman's Warehouse Expansion, 1877 Madison Road, Council Report



CU-2012-08, Woodman's Warehouse Expansion, 1877 Madison Road, Council Report



CU-2012-08, Woodman's Warehouse Expansion, 1877 Madison Road, Council Report



PROCEEDINGS OF THE BELOIT CITY COUNCIL
100 State Street, Beloit WI 53511
Monday, December 17, 2012

Presiding: Charles M. Haynes
Present: Sheila De Forest, Chuck Kincaid, Kevin D. Leavy, Mark Spreitzer, and James E. Van De

Bogart
Absent: David F. Luebke

1. The meeting was called to order at 7:06 p.m. in the Forum at Beloit City Hall.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY/ANNOUNCEMENTS – none

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS – none

5. CITIZENS' PARTICIPATION – none

6. CONSENT AGENDA

Councilor Leavy made a motion to adopt the Consent Agenda, which consists of items 6.a. through
6.f. Councilor Spreitzer seconded, and the motion carried that the Consent Agenda be accepted,
approved, adopted, or referred and acted upon as required by state and local codes by a vote of 6-0.

a. The Minutes of the Special Meeting of November 27, 2012 and the Special and Regular
Meetings of December 3, 2012 were approved.

b. The resolution approving Change of Agent for the Board of Trustees for Beloit College, Beloit
College Coughy Haus, located at 708 Clary Street, from John Winkelmann to Steven Oliveri, was
adopted. File 8542

c. The application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow the expansion of a Warehouse and Freight
Movement Use in a C-3, Community Commercial District, for the property located at 1877
Madison Road was referred to the Plan Commission. File 7614

d. A resolution approving Farm Leases between the City of Beloit and Walsh Agricultural Holdings,
LLC, was adopted. File 7834

e. A resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into an Ambulance Service Agreement with
the Town of Turtle was adopted. File 8051

f. A resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into an Ambulance Service Agreement with
the Town of LaPrairie was adopted. File 8051

7. ORDINANCES – none

8. APPOINTMENTS

President Haynes announced openings and submitted the following appointments to the City
Committees, Boards, and Commissions for approval. The appointments were approved on a motion
by Councilor Van De Bogart and a second by Councilor De Forest. The motion carried 6-0.

a. Appointment Review Committee: Henry Clement for a term ending December 31, 2015, and
Marlene Erickson for a term ending December 31, 2015. File 6261

b. Board of Review: Bobby Beamon for a term ending December 31, 2017. File 6063
c. Business Improvement District: Tiffany Warn to a term ending December 31, 2015; Richard F.

Hulburt to a term ending December 31, 2015; Tom Hankins to a term ending December 31, 2015;
Douglas Kelley to a term ending December 31, 2014; Jeff Redieske to a term ending December
31, 2015; and Betsy Schmiechen to a term ending December 31, 2014. File 6716

d. Community Development Authority: Nailah Adama for a term ending December 31, 2016.
File 6054



9. COUNCILOR ACTIVITIES AND UPCOMING EVENTS

 Councilor De Forest welcomed the students in the audience and reminded them of the openings
for youth representatives on City committees. She also said that she attended Grinnell Hall’s
holiday show celebrating John Kalkirtz’s retirement.

 Councilor Van De Bogart congratulated everyone who participated in Holidazzle and reminded
the public to drive carefully on snow and ice.

 Councilor Kincaid said that the City’s new website was launched that day and that Holidazzle was
a great success.

 Councilor Leavy echoed the praises for Holidazzle. He welcomed the students in the audience
and reminded them that they can be part of the City.

10. CITY MANAGER’S PRESENTATION – none

11. REPORTS FROM BOARD AND CITY OFFICERS

a. Assistant to the City Manager Beth Jacobsen presented a resolution approving the 2013 Stray
Animal Contract between the City of Beloit and the Dane County Humane Society and
authorizing the execution thereof. She indicated that this service was previously provided by the
Rock County Humane Society, and that staff is recommending that stray animals be sheltered
through a duel contract at both the Rock County and Dane County Humane Societies. Councilor
Leavy made a motion to adopt the resolution, and Councilor De Forest seconded. Councilor De
Forest said that she appreciates the work done to come to this solution, and she requested that
the Council be kept informed of any efforts to build a holding facility in Janesville. The motion
carried 6-0. File 8578

b. Ms. Jacobsen presented a resolution approving the 2013 Stray Animal Contract between the
City of Beloit and the Rock County Humane Society and authorizing the execution thereof.
Councilor Leavy made a motion to adopt the resolution, and Councilor Kincaid seconded. The
motion carried 6-0. File 5956

c. Economic Development Director Andrew Janke presented a resolution authorizing the City
Manager to enter into an amended Development Agreement with Northstar Medical
Radioisotopes, LLC. Mr. Janke introduced George Messina, President and CEO of Northstar. Mr.
Messina said that the project has been delayed because they are in the process of redesigning
the building based on upgraded technology. He said that they are currently sending applications
to the FDA for approval while working to reduce the costs associated with the facility. Mr. Janke
said that the scope and scale of the project has changed; therefore, the development agreement
must be amended. Councilor Van De Bogart disclosed that his wife has done legal work related
to intellectual property for Northstar, and City Attorney Tom Casper said that this does not
constitute a conflict of interest for this project. Councilor Van De Bogart made a motion to adopt
the resolution, and Councilor De Forest seconded. Councilor De Forest asked Mr. Messina to
address the 150 jobs promised in the original development agreement. Mr. Messina responded
that even though technology has made their process more efficient, they will still need to staff the
facility 24 hours per day. He said that he hopes there will be more than 150 jobs created by this
project. Councilor Van De Bogart asked about the future of the facility if Northstar were to leave,
and Mr. Messina stated that they will be using a very safe isotope and the facility will be clean
after 90 days of nonuse. The motion carried 6-0. File 8505

d. City Manager Larry Arft presented a resolution approving Sixth Amendment to Development
Agreement between the City, et al and MLG and further approving Purchase Agreement,
authorizing execution of the same and providing for Budget Amendment and Supplemental
Appropriation. Mr. Arft explained that this resolution facilitates the purchase of 65 acres of land;
buys the brokerage rights to the property; and appropriates the funds necessary. He indicated
that this will be funded through Tax Increment District 10 without any borrowing. Councilor Leavy
made a motion to adopt the resolution, and Councilor Spreitzer seconded. Councilor Spreitzer
asked about the single payment, and Mr. Arft said that the single payment allows the City to
reduce the overall cost and eliminate interest payments. Councilor De Forest said that she will be
voting in opposition to this resolution because she cannot approve a payment of this magnitude
for land the City already owns. Councilor Van De Bogart inquired about the public/private
development partnership that was created in the original agreement in 2000. Mr. Arft explained
that the way business park land is marketed and sold has changed significantly since the original
agreement. He said that now companies go directly to the City or the local economic
development corporation for incentives, and that this deal will allow the City more flexibility in
marketing the land. Councilor Spreitzer said that he does not like that the City has been put in this



position by a previous development agreement but that this will assist in development of the area
in the future. Councilor Haynes said that he is happy to remove MLG from the table when making
land acquisition and development decisions. The motion carried 5-1 with Councilor De Forest
voting in opposition. File 8306/7938/8514

e. Finance and Administrative Services Director Paul York presented a resolution authorizing the
Transfer of Funds from the General Fund Contingency Reserve Fund for 2012. He said that
funds must be transferred into the Clerk’s office budget and the Community Development budget.
He said that there were two unbudgeted elections in 2012 in the Clerk’s office, and that additional
funds are needed in Code Enforcement due to a HUD finding in a recent audit. Councilor
Spreitzer made a motion to adopt the resolution, and Councilor Leavy seconded. The motion
carried 6-0. File 8514

f. Mr. York presented a resolution declaring Doubtful Accounts, authorizing amounts to be written
off, and receiving and filing the 2012 Report of the Comptroller. Councilor Leavy made a motion
to adopt the resolution, and Councilor De Forest seconded. Councilor De Forest asked if the
Neighborhood Housing Revolving loan fund will be negatively impacted, and Mr. Arft said that
there is program income coming into the fund each year and the amount written off through this
resolution is a small percent of the total amount loaned. Mr. York said that the City’s collection
agency will still attempt to collect this debt. Councilor Van De Bogart asked if the Beloit Country
Market had a personal loan guarantee, and Mr. Janke said that the City is going to trial on the
loan and that the personal property taxes will be written off if the resolution is adopted. The
motion carried 6-0. File 7779

g. Mr. York presented a resolution providing for the Sale of approximately $7,565,000 General
Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A. He introduced Jim Mann from Ehlers and
Associates, who explained the three series of bond issues and the money to be saved by
refunding them. Councilor Leavy made a motion to adopt the resolution, and Councilor De Forest
seconded. The motion carried by roll call vote 6-0. File 8570

h. Mr. York presented a resolution providing for the Sale of approximately $6,040,000 Water
System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2013B. Councilor Spreitzer made a motion to adopt
the resolution, and Councilor Leavy seconded. The motion carried by roll call vote 6-0. File 8570

i. Mr. York presented a resolution providing for the Sale of approximately $895,000 Taxable
General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2013C. Councilor Van De Bogart made a motion
to adopt the resolution, and Councilor Kincaid seconded. The motion carried by roll call vote 6-0.
File 8570

12. At 8:23 p.m., Councilor Leavy made a motion to adjourn the meeting, and Councilor De Forest
seconded. The motion carried 6-0.

___________________________________
Rebecca S. Houseman, City Clerk

www.ci.beloit.wi.us
Date approved by Council:



RESOLUTION APPROVING OFFICE OF JUSTICE ASSISTANCE
LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER GRANT AWARD – BEAT PATROL

WHEREAS, the City of Beloit has annually received Law Enforcement Beat Patrol
Grants from the Office of Justice Assistance going back to approximately 1994; and

WHEREAS, attached is a grant offered by the State of Wisconsin Office of Justice
Assistance for the year 2013 in the amount of $161,912.00; and

WHEREAS, said amount has been included in the approved 2013 budget document.

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin,
hereby resolves that the attached Office of Justice Assistance Law Enforcement Officer Grant
Award – Beat Patrol be accepted and the same is hereby approved.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager of the City of Beloit be, and he is
hereby, authorized to execute the grant document and do all other things necessary to implement
the City’s acceptance of said grant.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager is hereby authorized to sign future
OJA Beat Patrol grants without further City Council action so long as there are no substantive
changes in the terms and conditions of said grants other than possible annual variations in the
grant amount.

Adopted this 7th day of January, 2013.

City Council of the City of Beloit

Charles M. Haynes, President

Attest:

Rebecca S. Houseman, City Clerk

tdh\resolution\BeatPatrolGrant2013=res=121228 0942 (cln) (12-1242)



121228 1503 (cln) Form Revised 07-01-08

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: 2013 Beat Patrol Grant

Date: January 7, 2013

Presenter(s): Chief Norm Jacobs Department(s): Police

Overview/Background Information:

This is an ongoing grant that is funded by the Office of Justice Assistance. It provides supplemental funding to communities
for additional patrol officers based upon crime statistics over a three-year period. The city and department have received
funding via this program since 1994. This 2013 grant is the first year of a three-year cycle of grant awards. Although the
funding level has reduced drastically over time, it still partially funds two patrol positions. Our sworn officer numbers cannot
decrease from their current levels or the continued funding may not be available for future years. Our sworn staff reductions
this past year nearly caused us to be ineligible for this supplemental funding in 2013.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

 OJA Federally Funded Grant Support Program for the City and the Department
 Without these funds, we would not be able to fund upwards of two sworn police positions
 Consistent with Agency Goals and Objectives in regards to addressing crime in neighborhoods

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s mission.):

Partial Funding for Patrol Officer Positions.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both
the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels (N/A)

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature (N/A)

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems (N/A)

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently (N/A)

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that space.

Action required/Recommendation:

Staff recommends approval.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:

Local match of $40,478.00 which is consistent with other previous grant awards.

Attachments:









1

ORDINANCE NO. _______________

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTIONS 25.04(4)(d), 18.02(4)(b), 15.16(3) AND
15.17(1) AND TO CREATE SECTIONS 18.02(23) AND 15.15 OF THE CODE OF
GENERAL ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF BELOIT PERTAINING TO ANIMAL
CONTROL ENFORCEMENT AND DOG PARK REGULATIONS.

The City Council of the City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin, do ordain as follows:

Section 1. Section 25.04(4)(d) of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit is
hereby amended to include, in numerical order, the following additions to the list of city employees
authorized to issue municipal citations for violation of city ordinances:

Chapter Title Enforcement Official

14.17 Dogs and Cats
Community Services Officer; Animal
Control Officer

15.15 Livestock Prohibited
Community Service Officer; Animal
Control Officer

15.16 Animals Not to Run at Large
Community Services Officer; Animal
Control Officer

15.165
Defecation by Dogs or Cats on
Public and Private Property
Prohibited

Community Services Officer; Animal
Control Officer

15.17
Dangerous Animals and
Potentially Dangerous
Animals

Community Services Officer; Animal
Control Officer

18.02(4)
and
18.02(23)

Park Regulations relating to
Animals and Dog Parks

Community Services Officer; Animal
Control Officer

Section 2. Section 18.02(4)(b) of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit is
hereby amended to read as follows:

“(b) Animals Not to Run at Large. No person shall allow any animal to run at large in a City
park in violation of §15.16 of this Municipal Code except as provided in (23) of this
section.”

Section 3. Section 15.16(3) of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit is
hereby amended to read as follows:



2

“(3) IMPOUNDING AND RELATED FEES. Except as provided in §15.17(2), (7) and (11), any
person who owns, harbors, or keeps an animal which has been impounded for running
at large or for failure to display license or rabies tags, may reclaim the animal from the
impoundment facility upon payment of the following:
(a) A Redemption Fee specified by the impoundment

facilityRock County Humane Society or the Rock County Board.
(b) A Boarding Fee specified by the impoundment

facilityRock County Humane Society or the Rock County Board.
(c) A Rabies Inoculation Fee (if required).
(d) A Dog License Fee (if required).”

Section 4. The term “officer” found in section 15.17(1) of the Code of General Ordinances
of the City of Beloit is hereby amended to read as follows:

“Officer. Any law enforcementpeace officer, or Rock County Humane Society community
services officer, or animal control officer.”

Section 5. Section 18.02(23) of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit is
hereby created to read as follows:

“(23) DOG PARKS.
(a) A dog park is an enclosed fence facility designated by the City for the purpose of

allowing dogs, under the control of their owner or keeper, to exercise and socialize
unleashed.

(b) The Director shall have authority to control dog parks and to make reasonable rules for
the operation of dog parks that are consistent with this ordinance. Such rules shall be
approved by the Parks and Recreation Advisory Commission and shall be posted in a
conspicuous place at the dog park. A person found to be in violation of such rules shall
be subject to removal from the dog park.

(c) Dog parks may be operated year-round on a daily basis from sunrise to sunset, unless
closed for maintenance or severe weather.

(d) Dogs are permitted to run unleashed in areas designated and posted by the city as a dog
park under the following conditions:
1. The owner or keeper of the dog must be present; and
2. The dog must be under the voice control of the owner or keeper at all times;

and
3. Current rabies vaccination tag and dog license as required by section 14.17 of

this Municipal Code must be displayed on the dog’s collar; and
4. Feces must be properly removed and disposed of in compliance with section

15.165 of this Municipal Code; and
5. The owner of the dog must have secured a permit for use of dog parks within

the city. The permit fee shall be established by city council resolution.
(e) Dogs that are engaged fighting with other dogs shall immediately be removed from the

dog park.
(f) Commercial use of a dog park is prohibited without written consent of the Director.
(g) Any person convicted of violating any provision of this section shall be subject to a

penalty as provided in §25.04 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit.”



3

Section 6. Section 15.15 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit is hereby
created to read as follows:

“15.15 LIVESTOCK. No person may keep any livestock on any lands in the City which the person owns,
occupies or controls, unless the livestock is permitted under §7.243 of this Code.”

Section 7. This ordinance shall be in force and take effect upon passage and publication.

Adopted this ______ day of January, 2013.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

By:
Charles M. Haynes, President

ATTEST:

By:
Rebecca S. Houseman, City Clerk

PUBLISHED:
EFFECTIVE DATE:
01-611100-5231-

tdh/ordinances/25.04(4)(d), 18.02(4)(b), 15.16(3), 15.17(1), 18.02(23) & 15.15 = ord 121231 (12-1234)



Revised 01-10-08

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: ANIMAL CONTROL ENFORCEMENT / DOG PARK REGULATIONS

Date: JANUARY 7, 2013

Presenter(s): ELIZABETH KRUEGER, DEPUTY CITY ATTORNEY Department(s): ATTORNEY

Overview/Background Information:

Animal Control Program
Animal Control services will now be handled in-house by the Beloit Police Department. In order to accomplish the enforcement program,
community service officers (CSOs) and animal control officers must be given the authority to issue citations for certain animal-related
ordinances. The proposed ordinance authorizes CSOs and animal control officers to issue citations of those ordinances. CSOs and animal
control officers will be certified as humane officers under state law and receive training in humane animal handling techniques, sanitation
methods and animal diseases. The CSOs and animal control officers will also receive training in animal control laws and procedures found in
the Wisconsin state statutes and city ordinances.

Dog Park
In order to enforce rules and regulations relating to the dog park, minor ordinance changes are needed. The first such change relates to
exempting dogs from the ordinance that prohibits animals from running at large within city parks provided certain conditions are met,
including the provision that the dog be within the fenced-in area designated and posted as a dog park. The proposed ordinance further
authorizes the Director of Parks and Leisure Services to create reasonable rules and regulations relating to the use of the dog park and
provides for a mechanism for enforcement.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. The proposed ordinance will give CSOs and animal control officers the authority to enforce certain animal-related ordinances,
including ordinances relating to animals running at large, dangerous animals, dog licensing and vaccination.

2. The proposed ordinance provides law enforcement officers, CSOs and animal control officers the authority to issue citations for
livestock kept within the city contrary to section 7.243 of the Code of General Ordinances for the City of Beloit.

3. The proposed ordinance makes minor amendments necessitated by the change in vendors for impoundment facilities.
4. The proposed ordinance exempts dogs from section 18.02(4) of the Code of General Ordinances for the City of Beloit which prohibits

animals from running at large within city parks provided certain conditions are met.
5. The proposed ordinance allows the Director of Parks and Leisure Services to create reasonable rules and regulations relating to the

use of the dog park and provides a mechanism for enforcement. Such rules and regulations must be approved by the Park,
Recreation and Conservation Advisory Commission and posted in a conspicuous area of the dog park.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s mission.):

Adoption of the proposed ordinance would conform to the stated purpose of goal #1 in furthering the responsible stewardship and
enhancement of City resources.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both the
built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently N/A

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that space.

Action required/Recommendation:
The proposed ordinance has been reviewed by staff of the affected departments and is recommended for approval.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:
The proposed ordinance should not obligate any additional City funds other than what has already been budgeted for these programs.



ORDINANCE NO. _______________

AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL SECTION 1.81 OF THE CODE OF
GENERAL ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF BELOIT AS IT RELATES
TO DISBANDING THE DISABLED PARKING ENFORCEMENT
ASSISTANCE COUNCIL

WHEREAS, the purpose of the Disabled Parking Enforcement Assistance Council is to
assist the City of Beloit Police Department in the enforcement of the disabled parking regulations
found in the Wisconsin Statutes adopted by Beloit Ordinances; and

WHEREAS, the Disabled Parking Enforcement Assistance Council requires six citizen
members to serve 3-year terms, thereby requiring four voting members to constitute a quorum;
and

WHEREAS, the Appointment Review Committee has had difficulty staffing the Disabled
Parking Enforcement Assistance Council with citizen members; and

WHEREAS, the Disabled Parking Enforcement Assistance Council has not formally met
since April, 2010 due to difficulties in achieving a quorum; and

WHEREAS, the Appointment Review Committee is recommending that the City Council
of the City of Beloit disband the Disabled Parking Enforcement Assistance Council due to
staffing difficulties; and

WHEREAS, there is no statutory requirement for a municipality to have a Disabled
Parking Committee.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Beloit,
Rock County, Wisconsin, do ordain as follows:

Section 1. Section 1.81 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit is
hereby repealed.

Section 2. This ordinance shall be in force and take effect upon passage and
publication.

Adopted this 7th day of January, 2013.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

By:
Charles M. Haynes, President



2

ATTEST:

By:
Rebecca S. Houseman, City Clerk

PUBLISHED:
EFFECTIVE DATE:
01-611100-5231-
tdh/ord/1 81=ORD=121206 (disabled parking council) (12-1239)



121228 1020 (cln) Form Revised 07-01-08

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Disbanding the Disabled Parking Enforcement Assistance Council

Date: January 7, 2013

Presenter(s): Thomas Casper Department(s): City Attorney

Overview/Background Information:

Section 1.81 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit established a Disabled Parking Enforcement Assistance
Council. According to the attached November 12, 2012 letter to Council President Charles Haynes from Henry Clement,
Chairman of the Appointment Review Committee, the City Council is being asked to repeal the ordinance creating the council
and to disband the same. As outlined in that letter, it has been a significant time since the council has met with a quorum,
there is no statutory requirement mandating such a council, and no adverse consequences are expected should the council
be disbanded. The community service officers actively enforce the disabled parking ordinance as well as other parking
regulations. In addition, one of the members of the City Disabled Parking Enforcement Assistance Council is also a member
of a similar group established by the county board and may choose to remain active. Elimination of the council will not
prevent the police department from taking violation reports from former council members or any citizen (council members
never had authority to issue tickets directly).

It should also be noted that there have been repeated efforts to recruit new council members by both City staff and the
Appointment Review Committee, which have not been successful.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

Should the Disabled Parking Enforcement Assistance Council be disbanded and the ordinance implementing the same be
repealed?

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s mission.):

Adoption of the proposed ordinance would conform to the stated purpose of Goal #1 in furthering the responsible stewardship
and enforcement of city ordinances.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both
the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently N/A

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that space.

Action required/Recommendation:

The proposed ordinance has been reviewed by staff, affected departments, and the Appointment Review Committee and is
recommended for approval.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A



RESOLUTION
APPROVING THE NAMING OF THE AUDITORIUM AT GRINNELL HALL IN

HONOR OF JOHN KALKIRTZ

WHEREAS, on January 11, 2013, John Kalkirtz will be retiring as a city employee after
completing 24 years of dedicated service to the City of Beloit as the Center Supervisor at
Grinnell Hall, and

WHEREAS, the Grinnell Hall Senior Advisory Committee has presented a request to
name the Auditorium within Grinnell Hall in honor of John Kalkirtz for his numerous years of
valuable and dedicated to service to the Seniors that use Grinnell Hall, and

WHEREAS, for numerous years the Auditorium in Grinnell Hall has been used for
countless recreational programs and annual special events, and

WHEREAS, no other official name has been designated for the Auditorium in Grinnell
Hall, and

WHEREAS, the Parks, Recreation, and Conservation Advisory Commission has
supported and recommends naming this facility within Grinnell Hall in recognition of John
Kalkirtz, and has assured that the administrative policies and guidelines for naming public lands,
parks, and recreation facilities has been appropriately executed.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the City Council of the City of
Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin, hereby adopts the name of the Auditorium in Grinnell Hall,
located at 631 Bluff Street in Beloit, to be known as the John Kalkirtz Memorial Auditorium.

Adopted this 7th day of January, 2013

City Council of the City of Beloit

____________________________________
Charles M. Haynes, Council President

Attest:

_____________________________________
Rebecca S. Houseman, City Clerk



Revised 01-10-08

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Consideration and approval of naming the Auditorium at Grinnell Hall in honor of John Kalkirtz.

Date: January 7, 2013

Presenter(s): Brian Ramsey, Director of Parks & Leisure Services Department(s): Public Works

Overview/Background Information:

At the request of the Grinnell Hall Senior Advisory Committee, the Parks & Recreation Commission recently reviewed their
request to name Grinnell Hall in honor of John Kalkirtz. John has been the Senior Center Supervisor for over 24 years (since
October, 1988) and will be retiring from his position as of January 12, 2013. Over this period of time, John has not only been
admired as a stabling force in managing the Center, but he has been a key element in regards to developing many of the
programs and activities that the Center is known for today. Therefore, based upon City’s policy for Naming Parks &
Recreational Facilities, the Parks & Recreation Commission supports and recommends naming the Auditorium at Grinnell
Hall in honor of John Kalkirtz.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. John has been a valued employee managing Grinnell Hall for over 24 years.
2. The recommendation for naming the Auditorium was presented by the Grinnell Hall Senior Advisory Board.
3. As indicated in the Guidelines for Naming a Recreational Facility; to show gratitude to a person who, over a long

period of time, has devoted outstanding amounts of time, talent, and effort to the advancement of the Beloit Park
Program or the Beloit Community.

4. Currently, the Auditorium has not been designated or a name given in reference to this room in Grinnell Hall.
5. The recommendation for naming this facility in honor of John Kalkirtz has been unanimously approved at the

November, 2012 meeting by the Parks & Recreation Commission.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s mission.):

Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #1 and Strategic Goal #5:
 As an eco-municipality, focus on the sustainable stewardship of City resources, services and infrastructure; to

protect both our built and natural environment and enhance the quality of life for current and future generations.
 Apply sound, sustainable practices to promote a high quality community through historic preservation, community

revitalization, and new development.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both
the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – NA
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – NA
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems - NA
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently - NA

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that space.

Action required/Recommendation:

Consideration and approval of Naming the Auditorium at Grinnell Hall in Honor of John Kalkirtz

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:

A plaque will be purchased and appropriately placed in the Auditorium in Honor of John, plus a second identical plaque
presented to John at an official dedication ceremony in January of 2013. It’s estimated that this purchase would be less than
$200 and funding will be allocated from the Parks Operational Fund.



1

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SCHEDULE OF FEES AND CHARGES
FOR CITY OF BELOIT DOG PARK IN THE CITY OF BELOIT, WISCONSIN

WHEREAS, the City of Beloit has the authority to establish reasonable fees for services
provided or costs incurred in the administration of government, and;

WHEREAS, the Municipal Code provides that fees shall be established by City Council
resolution, and;

WHEREAS, the City as part of the budget preparation process annually reviews municipal fees,
charges, and rates related to costs and services provided by the various departments of the City, and;

WHEREAS, the City manages numerous enterprise operations which are either fully or primarily
supported through the establishment of user fees necessary to cover related costs for those services, and;

WHEREAS, the Parks, Recreation, and Conservation Commission has determined that these fees
and charges set forth hereinafter are reasonable, equitable and necessary to cover the operational cost of
maintaining this facility, and recommend the establishment of these rates within the 2013 FY Budget.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council adopts and approves the
recommended schedule of fees, charges, and rates as outlined in the following fee schedules, effective
January 8, 2013.

SECTION 1. THE 2013 DOG PARK SCHEDULE OF FEES, CHARGES, AND RATES FOR
SERVICES PROVIDED BY THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS DIVISION OF PARKS
AND LEISURE SERVICES.

A. PARKS – CITY OF BELOIT DOG PARK
2012 Rate 2013 Rate

Resident – Daily Fee N/A $5.00/visit
Non Resident – Daily Fee
Resident – Annual User ID Pass
Non Resident – Annual User ID Pass
Resident – Additional Dog
Non Resident – Additional Dog
Resident – Dog Park ID & Dog License Combo*

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

$5.00/visit
$20.00/Year
$30.00/Year
$10.00/Year
$10.00/Year
$25.00/Year

 Dog Park ID & Dog License combo must be purchased at the same time and is only available at the Beloit City
Treasurer’s Office.

Dated at Beloit, Wisconsin this 7th day of January, 2013.

____________________________
Charles M. Haynes
Council President

Attest:

_______________________________
Rebecca S. Houseman
City Clerk



Revised 01-10-08

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Authorizing Schedule of Fees, Charges, and Rates for the City of Beloit Dog Park in the City of Beloit,
Wisconsin

Date: January 7, 2013

Presenter(s): Brian Ramsey, Director of Parks & Leisure Services Department(s): DPW

Overview/Background Information:

In preparation of opening the Dog Park, the proposed Fee Schedule related to the use of this facility were absently omitted in
the previous review of proposed Fees for the 2013 Fiscal Year. The Fees that are proposed have been previous reviewed
and recommend by the Parks & Recreation Commission based upon similar fee structures at similar facilities, and a
comparison of those fees has been evaluated in determining this recommendation.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
1.) The Parks & Recreation Commission reviewed a comparison list of fees for 10 other regional Dog Parks in order before

determining their recommendation for the new Dog Park Fees.
2.) In comparing user fees for Dog Parks, the average fees are as follow:

 Resident Fees @ $22.20/Dog
 Non-Resident Fees @ $30.83/ Dog
 Additional Dog Fee @ $9.07/ Dog
 Daily Fee @ $3.60 / Dog

3.) Only 1 out of 10 communities on the comparison list charged an additional cost to non-residents in regards to the daily fee.
4.) It is unknown how many Dog owners will purchase a Dog Tag for the Dog Park in the first year, however for the purpose of

budgeting for this new facility, it is anticipated that if 50% of the dog owners who purchased Dog Licenses in 2012 also purchased
a Dog Tag, it may generate approximately $6,000 annually, and approximately 300 Dog Tags sold.

5.) The purpose of charging Fees for the Dog Park is to off-set general maintenance cost of operating this facility; including trash
removal, mowing, and any necessary repairs to fencing and/or additional equipment needed to enhance the new facility.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s mission.):

Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #1, #3, and #5

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both
the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels - NA
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature - NA
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems - NA
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently

The development of the Dog Park was a direct result as a priority established by the Parks & Recreation Commission in
response to the public’s request for this type of facility within the City Parks system.

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that space.

Action required/Recommendation:

 City Council consideration and action on the proposed fees as presented within the Fee Resolution.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:
The development of the Dog Park was funded within the 2012 CIP Budget, and Dog Park Revenue Fees will enhance the General Fund
balance.



RESOLUTION AMENDING THE 2013 CAPITAL EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT
BUDGET AND APPROPRIATING FUNDS

FOR THE REPLACEMENT OF PICKUP TRUCK 431

WHEREAS, the City adopted the 2013 Capital Equipment Replacement Budget on November 5,
2012; and,

WHEREAS, truck number 431 was totaled in an accident in October 2012; and,

WHEREAS, the city’s insurance coverage on truck 431 paid $5,969.25 to the City of Beloit as
the insured value of the totaled truck which is now part of the fund balance of the equipment
replacement fund; and,

WHEREAS, the cost of replacing truck 431 with a new pickup truck is $18,278.00 and
sufficient funds are available in the Capital Equipment Replacement Fund to cover this cost.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the 2013 Capital Equipment Replacement
Budget is hereby amended and additional funds are appropriated, as follows:

FUNDING:
Fund Balance (Equipment Replacement Fund) $18,278.00
Total $18,278.00

EXPENDITURES:
Project Name Original Amended Difference
431 Truck Replacement – 33707192-5531-2013 $0 $18,278.00 $18,278.00
Total $18,278.00

Dated at Beloit, Wisconsin, this 7th day of January, 2013

________________________________
Charles M. Haynes
President of the Council

ATTEST:

___________________________________
Rebecca S. Houseman
City Clerk



Revised 01-10-08

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Resolution amending the 2013 Capital Equipment Replacement Budget for the purchase of a replacement truck for
truck 431

Date: January 7, 2013

Presenter(s): Michael Flesch, City Engineer Department(s): Public Works/Engineering

Overview/Background Information:

Truck 431 was totaled in an accident in October, 2012. A replacement vehicle is needed. The budget must be amended to
allow for the purchase of the replacement truck. Insurance payout that was received from the accident is less than the new
vehicle.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. Truck 431 was totaled in an accident in October 2012.
2. Insurance has paid $5,969.25 to the City of Beloit as the insured value of the totaled truck 431.
3. The insurance money has been deposited into the Capital Equipment Replacement Account.
4. The cost of replacing truck 431 with a new pickup truck is $18,278.00

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s mission.):

1. Develop a high quality community through the responsible stewardship and enhancement of City resources to further
Beloit’s resurgence as a gem of the Rock River Valley.

2. Purchasing the replacement vehicle will allow engineering to continue to provide services to the citizens in a timely
and cost effective manner.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both
the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels

The replacement truck will have a smaller more fuel efficient engine than truck 431.

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature

More fuel efficiency will reduce greenhouse gases and carbon footprint

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems

With a more fuel efficient engine, less fossil fuels will be needed and greenhouse gases reduced.

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently

N/A

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that space.

Action required/Recommendation:

Engineering recommends approval of the budget amendment for the purchase of the replacement truck.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:

Adequate funds are available in the Equipment Replacement Account for this purchase.



RESOLUTION
APPROVING AN AMENDMENT OF THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN

THE CITY OF BELOIT AND
VANTAGECARE RETIREMENT HEALTH SAVINGS (RHS) PLAN

WHEREAS, the City of Beloit has administrative, supervisory, professional, confidential
and bargaining unit employees that have rendered valuable services to the City during their
careers; and

WHEREAS, the City of Beloit adopted various terms and conditions of its retirement
health savings plan #801351 with VantageCare Retirement Solutions in 2007 one of which
requires retirees to be age 55 or older to access their account; and

WHEREAS, it is recommended that the plan be amended to allow retirees to access their
accounts at age 50 rather than 55 to accommodate those employees retiring early; and

WHEREAS, the amendment of its existing retiree health savings plan for such
employees serves the interests of the Employer and Employees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Beloit City Council that the City
Manager be, and he hereby is, authorized to amend the Plan in the form of the ICMA Retirement
Corporation’s VantageCare Retirement Health Savings program.

Adopted this 7th day of January, 2013

Charles M. Haynes, President

Attest:

Rebecca S. Houseman, City Clerk



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Amendment of the VantageCare Retirement Health Savings Plan.

Date: January 7, 2013

Presenter(s): Larry Arft Department: Finance and Administrative Services/Human
Resources

Overview/Background Information:

The City of Beloit established a health savings retirement (801351) plan in 2007 to provide security for protective service
employees’ health care needs during retirement. The former plan document restricted access to funds by retirees until they
were age 55. There have been recent retirements prior to age 55 by plan members and this amendment will make their
funds available to them for medical expenses as early as age 50.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

 Amend plan 801351 to allow retirees to access their funds at age 50.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s
mission.):

o Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #1.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will
impact both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:

o Approval authorizing City Manager to amend the City’s plan.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:
There is no fiscal impact.















RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING SALARY ADJUSTMENTS FOR
NON-REPRESENTED CITY EMPLOYEES

WHEREAS, on August 20, 2012, the City of Beloit awarded a contract to McGrath
Consulting Group, Inc. for the purpose of conducting a comprehensive position classification,
compensation study and pay plan for all of the City’s non-represented employees; and

WHEREAS, the study being prepared by McGrath, while in its final stages was not
completed in time to implement the full salary adjustments by the start of 2013and is not
expected to be fully implemented prior to March 1, 2013; and

WHEREAS, the approved Budget for 2013 set aside an allocation in the General Fund
totaling $160,000 with corresponding amounts in other funds equaling 2.75% of payroll for the
purpose of implementing the position classification, compensation study and pay plan plus
providing an across the board increase for all of the City’s non-represented employees; and

WHEREAS, the budget adoption resolution while it authorized the appropriation, did not
authorize any salary adjustments related to across the board increases or merit adjustments for
non-represented employees pending completion of the pay plan; and

WHEREAS, it has been determined that the estimated cost to implement the pay plan
will be $50,000 for all funds leaving a sum adequate for a 2.25% cost of living adjustment for
employees; and

WHEREAS following consultation with the consultant, Human Resources recommends
that this across the board increase along with warranted merit adjustments be authorized using
the current salary schedules in effect for all non-represented employees effective January 1,
2013; and

WHEREAS, those changes in salary ranges will be incorporated into the new proposed
pay plan prior to completion, with only the changes required to move employees that need
adjustments to be made at the time of implementation, which is currently scheduled for March 1,
2013.

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Manager is hereby authorized to
implement a cost of living adjustment equal to 2.25% for all non-represented employees along
with warranted merit increases, with implementation completed by adjusting the ranges for all
current non-represented classifications by that amount effective January 1, 2013.

THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER REOLVED that having recently completed the
annual evaluation for the City Manager, the City Council further authorizes the same 2.25%
across the board increase to be effective for the City Manager on January 1, 2013 as well.



Dated at Beloit, Wisconsin, this 7th day of January, 2013.

Charles M. Haynes
City Council President

Attest:

Rebecca S. Houseman
City Clerk



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Authorization and approval of salary adjustments for Non-represented City employees.

Date: January 7, 2013

Presenter(s): Larry Arft/Paul York Department: Finance and Administrative
Services / Human Resources

Overview/Background Information:
On August 20, 2013 the City of Beloit awarded a contract to McGrath Consulting Group, Inc. for the purpose of
conducting a comprehensive position classification, compensation study plan and pay plan for the City’s non-
represented employees. The study is in its final stages and is not expected to be fully implemented prior to March
1, 2013. However, it has been determined that the cost to implement the pay plan will be approximately $50,000
leaving a sum adequate for a 2.25% cost of living adjustment and warranted merit increases for non-represented
employees to be effective January 1, 2013.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
Authorize 2.25% cost of living adjustment and warranted merit increases for non-represented employees to be
effective January 1, 2013.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on
the City’s mission.):

o Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #1.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to
how it will impact both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality
guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature

– N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that
space.

Action required/Recommendation:
o Approval authorizing salary adjustments and warranted merit increases for non-represented City

employees.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:
The approved budget for 2013 set aside an allocation in the General Fund with corresponding amounts in other
funds equaling 2.75% of payroll for the purpose of implementing the position classification, compensation study
and pay plan plus providing an across the board increase for all of the City’s non-represented employees.
Therefore there is no budget impact.


	Monday, January 7, 2013
	1.	CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
	2.	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	3.	SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY/ANNOUNCEMENTS – none
	4.	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	a.	Public Hearing and Resolution Authorizing a Conditional Use Permit to allow expansion of a Warehouse and Freight movement use in a C-3, Community Commercial District, for the property located at 1877 Madison Road  (Christensen)

	5.	CITIZENS' PARTICIPATION
	6.	CONSENT AGENDA
	a.	Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of December 17, 2012  (Houseman)
	b.	Resolution approving an Office of Justice Assistance Law Enforcement Officer Grant Award – Beat Patrol (Tyler/Casper)

	7.	ORDINANCES
	a. Proposed Ordinance to amend Sections 25.04(4)(d) and 18.02(4)(b) and to create Sections 18.02(23) and 15.15 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit pertaining to Animal Control Enforcement and Dog Park Regulations  (Krueger)  First reading, suspend rules for a second reading
	b.	Proposed Ordinance to repeal section 1.81 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit as it relates to disbanding the Disabled Parking Enforcement Assistance Council  (Jacobs)  First reading, suspend the rules for a second reading

	8.	APPOINTMENTS – none
	9.	COUNCILOR ACTIVITIES AND UPCOMING EVENTS
	10.	CITY MANAGER’S PRESENTATION – none
	11.	REPORTS FROM BOARD AND CITY OFFICERS
	a.	Resolution approving the Naming of the Auditorium at Grinnell Hall in Honor of John Kalkirtz (Ramsey)
	b.	Resolution authorizing Schedule of Fees and Charges for the City of Beloit Dog Park in the City of Beloit, Wisconsin (Ramsey)
	c.	Resolution amending the 2013 Capital Equipment Replacement Budget and Appropriating Funds for the Replacement of Pickup Truck 431  (Flesch)
	d.	Resolution approving an Amendment of the Agreement between the City of Beloit and VantageCare Retirement Health Savings (RHS) Plan (York)
	e.	Resolution authorizing and approving a Cost of Living Adjustment for Non-Represented City employees (Arft/York)

	12.	ADJOURNMENT

